
 
 
 

If you need to access this agenda or any of the supporting reports in an alternative 
accessible format please contact Democratic Services or the relevant report author whose 
details are listed at the end of each report. 
 

 
This Agenda and all accompanying reports are printed on recycled paper 

 
Democratic Services Your ref:  
Riverside, Temple Street, Keynsham, Bristol BS31 1LA Our ref:  
Telephone: (01225) 477000 main switchboard Date: 27 May 2011 
Direct Lines - Tel: 01225 395090  Fax: 01225 394439 E-mail: Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk 
Web-site - http://www.bathnes.gov.uk   
 
 
To: All Members of the Licensing (Gambling and Licensing) Sub-Committee 

 
Councillors: Douglas Nicol (Chair), Gabriel Batt and Gerry Curran 

 
Chief Executive and other appropriate officers  
Press and Public  

 
 
Dear Member 
 
Licensing (Gambling and Licensing) Sub-Committee: Tuesday, 7th June, Wednesday 8th 
June and Thursday 9th June, 2011  
 
You are invited to attend meetings of the Licensing (Gambling and Licensing) Sub-
Committee, to be held on Tuesday, 7th June, Wednesday 8th June and, if necessary to 
complete the business, Thursday 9th June, 2011 at 10.30 am in the Kaposvar Room - 
Guildhall, Bath. 
 
The agenda for the meetings is set out overleaf. 
 
A private briefing session for Members will be held in the meeting room at 09.15am each day. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
Sean O'Neill 
for Chief Executive 



NOTES: 
 

1. Inspection of Papers: Any person wishing to inspect minutes, reports, or a list of the 
background papers relating to any item on this Agenda should contact Sean O'Neill who is 
available by telephoning Bath 01225 395090 or by calling at the Riverside Offices 
Keynsham (during normal office hours). 
 

2. Public Speaking at Meetings: The Council has a scheme to encourage the public to 
make their views known at meetings. They may make a statement relevant to what the 
meeting has power to do.  They may also present a petition or a deputation on behalf of a 
group.  Advance notice is required not less than two full working days before the meeting 
(this means that for meetings held on Wednesdays notice must be received in Democratic 
Services by 4.30pm the previous Friday)  
 
The public may also ask a question to which a written answer will be given. Questions 
must be submitted in writing to Democratic Services at least two full working days in 
advance of the meeting (this means that for meetings held on Wednesdays, notice must 
be received in Democratic Services by 4.30pm the previous Friday). If an answer cannot 
be prepared in time for the meeting it will be sent out within five days afterwards. Further 
details of the scheme can be obtained by contacting Sean O'Neill as above. 
 

3. Details of Decisions taken at this meeting can be found in the minutes which will be 
published as soon as possible after the meeting, and also circulated with the agenda for 
the next meeting.  In the meantime details can be obtained by contacting Sean O'Neill as 
above. 
 
Appendices to reports are available for inspection as follows:- 
 
Public Access points - Riverside - Keynsham, Guildhall - Bath, Hollies - Midsomer 
Norton, and Bath Central, Keynsham and Midsomer Norton public libraries.   
 
For Councillors and Officers papers may be inspected via Political Group Research 
Assistants and Group Rooms/Members' Rooms. 
 

4. Attendance Register: Members should sign the Register which will be circulated at the 
meeting. 
 

5. THE APPENDED SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS ARE IDENTIFIED BY AGENDA ITEM 
NUMBER. 
 

6. Emergency Evacuation Procedure 
 
When the continuous alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building by one of the 
designated exits and proceed to the named assembly point.  The designated exits are 
sign-posted. 
 
Arrangements are in place for the safe evacuation of disabled people. 
 

 



 

 

Licensing (Gambling and Licensing) Sub-Committee - Tuesday, 7th June, 2011 
 

at 10.30 am in the Kaposvar Room - Guildhall, Bath 
 

A G E N D A 
 
1. EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE  
 The Chair will draw attention to the emergency evacuation procedure as set out under 

Note 5 on the previous page. 
2. ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR (IF DESIRED)  
3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  
4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 To receive any declarations from Members/Officers of personal/prejudicial interests in 

respect of matters for consideration at this meeting, together with their statements on 
the nature of any such interests declared. 

5. TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR  
6. GAMBLING ACT PROCEDURE (Pages 5 - 10) 
 The Chair will explain the procedure. 
7. APPLICATION BY APOLLO RESORTS AND LEISURE LIMITED FOR THE ISSUE OF 

A PROVISIONAL STATEMENT FOR A PROPOSED SMALL CASINO AT CATTLE 
MARKET SITE, WALCOT STREET, BATH BA1 5BD (Pages 11 - 30) 

8. APPLICATION BY GALA CASINOS LTD FOR THE ISSUE OF A PROVISIONAL 
STATEMENT FOR A PROPOSED SMALL CASINO AT THE CATTLE MARKET SITE, 
WALCOT STREET, BATH BA1 5BD (Pages 31 - 66) 

9. APPLICATION BY GROSVENOR CASINOS LIMITED FOR THE ISSUE OF A 
PROVISIONAL STATEMENT FOR A PROPOSED SMALL CASINO AT THE SITE OF 
THE EXISTING CAR PARK BOUNDED BY MANVERS STREET TO THE WEST, 
WALKWAY ADJACENT TO THE POLICE STATION TO THE SOUTH AND SOUTH 
PARADE TO THE NORTH, BATH (Pages 67 - 108) 

 
The Committee Administrator for this meeting is Sean O'Neill who can be contacted on  
01225 395090. 
 
 





APPLICATIONS MADE UNDER THE GAMBLING ACT 2005  
 

LICENSING (GAMBLING AND LICENSING) SUB COMMITTEE  
HEARING PROCEDURE  

 
1) The Chair will introduce Members of the Sub-Committee and Officers present and 

will explain the procedure to be followed during the hearing  
 
2) The Licensing Officer will outline the nature of the matter to be considered by the 

Sub-Committee. 
 
3) In the following paragraphs: 
 
4) where the term “party” or “parties” is used in addition to other terms this will mean 

anyone to whom notice of this meeting has been given. 
 

5) Where the term Act is used this will mean the Gambling Act 2005. 
 

6) (i) The Applicant/Licence Holder (“the Applicant”), or representative, addresses 
the Sub-Committee.  The Applicant may be asked relevant questions with the 
Members’ consent. 

 
i) (ii) The Applicant, or representative, may call witnesses in support of the 

application.  Each witness may be asked relevant questions by the other 
parties and the Members with the Members’ consent. 

 
ii) (iii) The Applicant, or representative, may be asked to provide further 

information on, or explanation of, any matter on which the Members may 
want further clarification.  

 
7) (i) Any Interested Parties [defined in s.158 of the Act] making relevant 

representations, or representative, will take it in turn to address the Sub-
Committee.  The Interested Parties may be asked relevant questions by the other 
parties and the Members with the Members’ consent. 

 
i) (ii) Any Interested Party, or representative, may call witnesses in support of 

their representations.  Each witness may be asked relevant questions by 
the other parties and the Members with the Members’ consent. 

 
8) (i) Any Responsible Authority [defined in s.157 of the Act] making a 

representation will address the Committee.  The Responsible Authorities may be 
asked relevant questions by the other parties and the Members with the 
Members’ consent. 
 

i) (ii) Any Responsible Authority may call witnesses in support of their 
representations. Each witness may be asked relevant questions by the 
other parties and the Members with the Members consent. 

 
9) The Interested Parties will then be invited to briefly summarise their case if they 

wish. 
 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 5



10)  The Responsible Authorities will then be invited to briefly summarise their case if 
they wish. 

 
11)  The applicant will then be invited to briefly summarise their application. 
 
12)  The Chair will invite the Sub-Committee to move into private session to enable 

the Sub-Committee to deliberate in private.  The Sub-Committee may reconvene 
to resolve any points of uncertainty on the evidence already given. During their 
deliberation the Sub-Committee will be accompanied for advice only by the Legal 
Advisor and the Committee Administrator. The Sub-Committee may retire to a 
private room or alternatively require vacation of the meeting room by all other 
persons. 

 
13)  When the Sub-Committee resumes, the Chair will announce the decision in 

public; this will include the reasons (or advise that the decision will be released in 
writing with reasons within the statutory time limit in this instance 5 working days). 

 
 
PLEASE NOTE: 
 
14)  Where the Sub-Committee considers it necessary to do so, it may vary this 

procedure subject to The Gambling Act (Proceedings of Licensing Committees 
and Sub Committees) (Premises Licences and Provisional Statements) (England 
and Wales) Regulations 2007 (“the Regulations”). 

 
15)  The Sub Committee may proceed in the absence of a party or a party’s 

representative if that party has:- 
 

a) Informed the Sub Committee that he does not intend to attend or be 
represented at the hearing (and has not subsequently advised the Sub 
Committee otherwise) 

 
b) Failed to inform the Sub Committee whether he intends to attend or be 

represented at the hearing 
 

c) Left the hearing in circumstances enabling the Sub Committee reasonably to 
conclude that he does not intend to participate further  

 
d) Where a party has indicated that he does intend to attend or be represented at 

the hearing but fails attend or be represented the Sub Committee may decide 
to adjourn the hearing to a specified date if it considers it to be in the public 
interest 

 
e) If the hearing is adjourned to a specified date the parties will be notified of the 

date, time and venue as soon as practicably possible   
 
16)  All notices and representations received from absent parties will be considered. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



17)  The Sub Committee will take into account any additional late documentary or 
other information produced by an existing party in support of their 
application/representation before the hearing or at the hearing with the consent of 
all the other parties attending the hearing.  No new representations will be 
allowed at the hearing. 

 
18)  The hearing will take the form of a discussion but formal cross examination will 

not be permitted unless the Sub Committee considers that it is required for it 
properly to consider the application or representations made by a party. 
 

19)  The Authority will disregard any information or representation given by a party 
which is not relevant to the application, the Act, statutory guidance, or the 
Council’s Statement of Principles. 

 
20)  The Chair will allow the parties an equal maximum period of time in which to 

make representations. The amount of time will be at the discretion of the Chair, 
but in the interests of costs and efficiency will not normally exceed twenty 
minutes.  This will include the time taken for the presentation and the summing 
up, but not the time taken for questions.  

 
a) N.B. Where there is more than one party making relevant representations it is 

advised that a spokesperson is nominated in order to avoid duplication and 
repetition.  It is recommended that they arrive early to discuss the application 
with the other interested parties. 

 
21)  The Chair may require any person attending the hearing who is behaving in a 

disruptive manner to leave the hearing and may refuse to allow that person to 
return, or only allow them to return subject to certain conditions as the Sub 
Committee may specify.     
 

22)  Any such person may be permitted to remain at the hearing under such 
conditions as the Sub Committee may specify.   

 
23)  If such a person is required to leave the hearing the Sub Committee will allow 

them to submit to the Sub-Committee, before the end of the hearing, any 
information which they would have been entitled to give orally he not been 
required to leave.  The Sub Committee will take into account that information in 
determining the application. 

 
24)  Bath & North East Somerset Council is committed to taking decisions in an 

honest, accountable and transparent fashion, but on occasion may find it 
necessary to exclude members of the press and public based upon the legal 
framework given in Regulation 8 of the Regulations.  On these occasions 
decisions based on the above framework will be given.  

Page 7



Page 8



GAMBLING ACT 2005  
LICENSING (GAMBLING AND LICENSING) SUB-COMMITTEE  

HEARINGS PROCEDURE 
 

 
 

Introductions by Chair  
Chair explains procedure to be followed.  Have parties read and 

understood the procedure? 
 

 

Summary/update by Licensing Officer 
 

Applicant (or representative) presents case 
 (may call witnesses).  If an Applicant has been asked in advance of 

the hearing to clarify any points he will be asked to do 

Questions to Applicant by Members and (if permitted by the Sub-
Committee) other parties  

Interested Parties put case(s)  
(may call witnesses) 

Questions to Interested Parties by Members and (if permitted by the 
Sub-Committee) other parties  

Responsible Authorities’ cases (may call witnesses)  
 

Interested Parties sum up their case 

Applicant sums up case 
 

Sub-Committee deliberates in private 
 

Sub-Committee reconvenes and announces decision 
 

Questions to Responsible Authorities by Members and (if permitted 
by the Sub-Committee) other parties 

 

Responsible Authorities sum up their case 

Page 9



Page 10



Printed on recycled paper 1

 
Bath & North East Somerset Council 

 
MEETING: Licensing (Gambling and Licensing ) Sub Committee 
MEETING 
DATE: Tuesday 7th June 2011 

AGENDA 
ITEM 
NUMBER 

 

TITLE: 
Application for the Issue of a Provisional Statement for a proposed 
small casino at Cattle Market Site, Walcot Street, Bath BA1 5BD 
Apollo Resorts and Leisure Limited,  24 Adam and Eve Mews, London 
W8 6UJ  

WARD: ALL 
 

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 
List of attachments to this report: 
Appendix A; Copy of the application for a Provisional Statement 
Appendix B; Copy of Location Map and Plans 
Appendix C; Copy of a relevant representation 
 

 
 
1. THE ISSUE 

 
1.1 An application has been received from Apollo Resorts and Leisure Limited, 24 

Adam and Eve Mews, London W8 6UJ, under the Gambling Act 2003 (“the Act”).  
The application is for the issue of a Provisional Statement in respect of a 
proposed small casino on the Cattle Market Site, Walcot Street, Bath BA1 5BD. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION 

2.1. The Sub-Committee is asked to determine the application having considered the 
application, the supporting information provided by the applicant and the 
representation made against the application. 

 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 11



Printed on recycled paper 2

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
3.1. An application fee of £8,000 has been received, which covers the cost of the 

application process. 
4. THE REPORT 

4.1. An application has been received for the issue of a Provisional Statement to 
provide gambling facilities by way of a small casino.  A copy of the application 
form can be found at Appendix A.   

4.2. The hours applied for are Monday to Sunday 00.00 to 24.00. 
 

4.3. A map showing the location of the application and plans showing the proposed 
use of the premises can be found at Appendix B. 

 
4.4. A relevant representation has been received from an Interested Party.  A copy of 

the representation can be found at Appendix C.   The representation relates to the 
late night economy, which is causing crime and disorder, and they fear that the 
addition of a casino will lead to more crime and disorder. 

 
4.5. In accordance with the requirements of the Act the applicant served copies of 

the application upon the Gambling Commission, police, the fire authority, 
environmental health, development control, trading standards, and the child 
protection agency.   

4.6. The applicant is required to place a notice at the premises for a period of 28 
days, starting on the closing date for the receipt of applications (see paragraph 
5.5.below), and place an advert in a local newspaper within 10 days of the 
closing date. 

 
5. BACKGROUND 
 

5.1. The licensing authority (“the authority”) was awarded permission to grant one 
small casino premises licence (“the licence”) in its area on 20 May 2008 (under 
The Gambling (Geographical Distribution of Casino Premises Licences) Order 
2008).  These Regulations state that no more than one such licence issued by a 
licensing authority may have effect at any time. 

 
5.2. Under the Act a licence is required where an applicant intends to provide 

gambling facilities.  The application seeks to provide gambling facilities in the form 
of a small casino.   

 
5.3. A small casino is classified in The Categories of Casino Regulations 2008, as 

having a combined floor area of those parts of the casino, which are used for 
providing facilities for gambling, that are equal to or exceed 500 square metres, 
but is less than 1,500 square metres. 

 
5.4. Under section 204 of the Act an applicant may apply for a Provisional Statement 

in respect of premises that he expects to be constructed or altered or expects to 
acquire a right to occupy.  Once a Provisional Statement has been issued, the  
applicant can then apply for a licence at a later date.   

 
Page 12



Printed on recycled paper 3

 
 
5.5. The issue of one Provisional Statement for a small casino is governed by a 

competition procedure which is governed by Paragraphs 4 and 5 to Schedule 9 of 
the Act.   An invitation to apply for the licence was advertised in October 2010 
with a closing date of 28 February 2011.  

 
5.6. Stage 1 of the competition procedure is regulatory.  At Stage 1 an authority must 

not;  
 

5.6.1. take into account any matters which they would not ordinarily take into 
account in determining an application for a licence 

 
5.6.2. have regard to whether any of the competing applications is more deserving 

of the other at Stage 1. 
 

5.6.3. have regard to the expected demand for the facilities which it is proposed to 
provide. 

 
5.6.4. take into account whether or not the proposal is likely to be permitted in 

accordance with the law relating to planning or building. 
 
 

5.7. At Stage 1 the Licensing Authority may either make a provisional decision to grant 
a Provisional Statement or reject the application.  If issued, an authority shall 
attach mandatory conditions to the Provisional Statement and may attach default 
conditions.  These conditions are governed by The Gambling Act 2005 
(Mandatory and Default Conditions) (England and Wales) Regulations 2007 (“the 
2007 Regulations”). 

 
5.8. The applicant has requested that the default condition, found in Part 6 of the 2007 

Regulations, be excluded.  This states that no facilities for gambling shall be 
provided on the premises between the hours of 6.00 am and noon on any day. 

 
5.9. In addition the authority can impose further conditions to promote the licensing 

objectives  
 
5.10. Where licensing authorities determine that they would, if they were able, to issue 

more than one Provisional Statement, the applicants who made those 
applications must be invited to participate in Stage 2. 

 
5.11. The award of the Provisional Statement for a small casino at Stage 2 of the 

competition is determined by the full Licensing Committee. (“the Committee”).  At 
Stage 2, the Committee must award the Provisional Statement to the application 
which would, in the licensing authority’s opinion be likely, if granted, to result in 
the greatest benefit to its area.  

 
 

6. PRINCIPLES TO BE APPLIED 
 

6.1. Under the provisions of the Act an authority, in making decisions at stage 1, shall 
aim to permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as the authority thinks it 
is: 

Page 13



Printed on recycled paper 4

 
6.1.1. in accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling 

Commission (“the Commission”), and 
 
6.1.2. in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Commission and, 
 
6.1.3. reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives (subject to 6.1.1 and 6.1.2  

above) and, 
 
6.1.4. in accordance with the authority’s Statement of Principles (“the Statement”) 

under the Act (subject to all of the above). 
 

6.2. With regard to paragraph 6.1.3 above, the licensing objectives are: 
 
6.2.1. Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being 

associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime 
 

6.2.2. Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way 
 
6.2.3. Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or 

exploited by gambling (it should be noted that the requirement in relation to 
children is explicitly to protect them from being harmed or exploited by 
gambling.) 

 
6.3. The authority shall also have regard to the Act, the Statutory Guidance issued 

under Section 25 of the Act and its Statement in making its determination. 
 

6.4. The committee should give specific consideration to the relevant representation 
received and whether or not it is satisfied that the premises can operate without 
risk to the licensing objectives listed in paragraph 6.2.   If it is not satisfied then 
the committee should consider whether the risk can be alleviated  through the 
implementation of a licence condition or, if not, whether it is necessary to refuse 
the application. 

 
 

7. APPEAL PROVISIONS  
 

7.1. If the application is refused the applicant may appeal within 21 days of written 
notification from the authority to the Magistrates’ Court. If the application is 
granted any person making a relevant representation may appeal within 21 days 
of written notification from the authority to the Magistrates’ Court. 

7.2. On appeal the court may either dismiss the appeal, substitute the decision 
appealed against for any other decision which the authority could have made, or 
remit the case to the authority to dispose of in accordance with the direction of 
the court. The court may make such order for costs as it thinks fit. 

7.3. In the event that an appeal is lodged, Stage 2 of the competition is suspended. 
7.4. This report has not been sent to the Trades Union because they would have no 

involvement. 
 
 
 

Page 14



Printed on recycled paper 5

8. RISK MANAGEMENT 
8.1. A risk assessment related to the issue and recommendations has been 

undertaken, in compliance with the Council's decision making risk management 
guidance. 

9. EQUALITIES 
9.1. The Council’s Equality Policy has been followed in writing this report. 
9.2. The committee will take into account their equality duties in determining this 

application. 
10. CONSULTATION 

10.1. As part of the application process the applicant placed a public notice in the 
Bath Chronicle, public notices were also displayed around the boundary of the 
proposed site and a copy of the application was sent to all the Responsible 
Authorities. 

11. ISSUES TO CONSIDER IN REACHING THE DECISION 
11.1. Section 153 of the Gambling Act 2005, Licensing Objectives, Human Rights, 

Equalities. 
12. ADVICE SOUGHT 

12.1. The Council's Monitoring Officer (Council Solicitor) has had the opportunity to 
input to this report and have cleared it for publication. 

Contact person  Andrew Jones, Environmental Monitoring and Licensing 
Manager. 
Tel: 01225 477557 

Background papers The Gambling Act 2005 
The Gambling Act 2005 (Mandatory and Default Conditions) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 2007 
The Gambling (Geographical Distribution of Casino Premises 
Licences) Order 2008 
The Categories of Casino Regulations 2008 
The Gambling (Inviting Competing Applications for Large and 
Small Casino Premises Licences) Regulations 2008 
Code of Practice - Determinations under Paragraphs 4 and 5 of 
Schedule 9 to the Gambling Act 2005 relating to Large and Small 
Casinos dated 26 February 2008  
Guidance to Licensing Authorities issued by the Gambling 
Commission 3rd Edition dated May 2009. 
BANES Statement of Principles dated February 2010 

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an alternative format 
 

Page 15



Page 16



Appendix A 

 

Page 17



Appendix A 

 

Page 18



Appendix A 

 

Page 19



Appendix A 

 

Page 20



Appendix A 

 

Page 21



Appendix A 

 

Page 22



Appendix B 

 

Page 23



Appendix B 

 

Page 24



Appendix B 

 

Page 25



Appendix B 

 

Page 26



Appendix B 

 

Page 27



Appendix B 

 

Page 28



Appendix C 

 

Page 29



Page 30



Printed on recycled paper 1

 
Bath & North East Somerset Council 

 

MEETING: 
 
Licensing (Gambling and Licensing ) Sub Committee 
 

MEETING 
DATE: Tuesday 7th June 2011 

AGENDA 
ITEM 
NUMBER 

 

TITLE: 
Application for the Issue of a Provisional Statement for a proposed 
small casino at the Cattle Market Site, Walcot Street, Bath BA1 5BD.  
Gala Casinos Limited, 71 Queensway, London W2 4QH 

WARD: ALL 
 

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 
List of attachments to this report: 
Appendix A; Copy of the application for a Provisional Statement 
Appendix B; Copy of Location Map and Plans 
Appendix C; Copy of a relevant representation 
 

 
 
1. THE ISSUE 

 
1.1 An application has been received under the Gambling Act 2003 (“the Act”) from 

Gala Casinos Limited, 17 Queensway, London W2 4QU.  The application is for 
the issue of a Provisional Statement in respect of a proposed small casino on the 
Cattle Market Site, Walcot Street, Bath BA1 5BD. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION 

2.1. The Sub-Committee is asked to determine the application having considered the 
application, the supporting information provided by the applicant and the 
representation made against the application. 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 31



Printed on recycled paper 2

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
3.1. An application fee of £8,000 has been received, which covers the cost of the 

application process. 
 
4. THE REPORT 

4.1. An application has been received for the issue of a Provisional Statement to 
provide gambling facilities by way of a small casino.  A copy of the application 
form can be found at Appendix A.   

4.2. The hours applied for are Monday to Sunday 00.00 to 24.00. 
 

4.3. A map showing the location of the application and plans showing the proposed 
use of the premises can be found at Appendix B. 

 
4.4. A relevant representation has been received from an Interested Party.  A copy of 

the representation can be found at Appendix C.   The representation relates to the 
late night economy, which is causing crime and disorder, and they fear that the 
addition of a casino will lead to more crime and disorder. 

 

4.5. In accordance with the requirements of the Act the applicant served copies of 
the application upon the Gambling Commission, police, the fire authority, 
environmental health, development control, trading standards, and the child 
protection agency.   

4.6. The applicant is required to place a notice at the premises for a period of 28 
days, starting on the closing date for the receipt of applications (see paragraph 
5.5 below), and place an advert in a local newspaper within 10 days of the 
closing date. 

 
5. BACKGROUND 
 

5.1. The licensing authority (“the authority”) was awarded permission to grant one 
small casino premises licence (“the licence”) in its area on 20 May 2008 (under 
The Gambling (Geographical Distribution of Casino Premises Licences) Order 
2008).  These Regulations state that no more than one such licence issued by a 
licensing authority may have effect at any time. 

 
5.2. Under the Act a licence is required where an applicant intends to provide 

gambling facilities.  The application seeks to provide gambling facilities in the form 
of a small casino.   

 
5.3. A small casino is classified in The Categories of Casino Regulations 2008,as 

having a combined floor area of those parts of the casino, which are used for 
providing facilities for gambling, that are equal to or exceed 500 square metres, 
but is less than 1,500 square metres. 

 
5.4. Under section 204 of the Act an applicant may apply for a Provisional Statement 

in respect of premises that he expects to be constructed or altered or expects to 
acquire a right to occupy.  Once a Provisional Statement has been issued the  
applicant can then apply for a licence at a later date.   

Page 32



Printed on recycled paper 3

5.5. The issue of one Provisional Statement for a small casino is governed by a 
competition procedure which is governed by Paragraphs 4 and 5 to Schedule 9 of 
the Act.   An invitation to apply for the licence was advertised in October 2010 
with a closing date of 28 February 2011.  

 
5.6. Stage 1 of the competition procedure is regulatory.  At Stage 1 an authority must 

not;  
 

5.6.1. take into account any matters which they would not ordinarily take into 
account in determining an application for a licence 

 
5.6.2. have regard to whether any of the competing applications is more deserving 

of the other at Stage 1. 
 

5.6.3. have regard to the expected demand for the facilities which it is proposed to 
provide. 

 
5.6.4. take into account whether or not the proposal is likely to be permitted in 

accordance with the law relating to planning or building. 
 
 

5.7. At Stage 1 the Licensing Authority may either make a provisional decision to grant 
a Provisional Statement or reject the application.  If issued, an authority shall 
attach mandatory conditions to the Provisional Statement and may attach default 
conditions.  These conditions are governed by The Gambling Act 2005 
(Mandatory and Default Conditions) (England and Wales) Regulations 2007 (“the 
2007 Regulations”). 

. 
5.8. The applicant has requested that the default condition, found in Part 6 of the 2007 

Regulations, be excluded.  This states that no facilities for gambling shall be 
provided on the premises between the hours of 6.00 am and noon on any day.  

 
5.9. In addition the authority can impose further conditions to promote the licensing 

objectives 
 
5.10. Where licensing authorities determine that they would, if they were able, to issue  

more than one Provisional Statement, the applicants who made those 
applications must be invited to participate in Stage 2. 

 
5.11. The award of the Provisional Statement for a small casino at Stage 2 of the 

competition is determined by the full Licensing Committee. (“the Committee”).  At 
Stage 2, the Committee must award the Provisional Statement to the application 
which would, in the licensing authority’s opinion be likely, if granted, to result in 
the greatest benefit to its area.  

 
 

6. PRINCIPLES TO BE APPLIED 
 

6.1. Under the provisions of the Act an authority, in making decisions, at stage 1, shall 
aim to permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as the authority thinks it 
is: 

 

Page 33



Printed on recycled paper 4

6.1.1. in accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling 
Commission (“the Commission”), and 

 
6.1.2. in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Commission and, 
 
6.1.3. reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives (subject to 6.1.1 and 6.1.2  

above) and, 
 
6.1.4. in accordance with the authority’s Statement of Principles (“the Statement”) 

under the Act (subject to all of the above). 
 

6.2. With regard to paragraph 6.1.3 above, the licensing objectives are: 
 
6.2.1. Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being 

associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime 
 

6.2.2. Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way 
 
6.2.3. Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or 

exploited by gambling (it should be noted that the requirement in relation to 
children is explicitly to protect them from being harmed or exploited by 
gambling.) 

 
6.3. The authority shall also have regard to the Act, the Statutory Guidance issued 

under Section 25 of the Act and its Statement in making its determination. 
 

6.4. The committee should give specific consideration to the relevant representation 
received and whether or not it is satisfied that the premises can operate without 
risk to the licensing objectives listed in paragraph 6.2.   If it is not satisfied then 
the committee should consider whether the risk can be alleviated  through the 
implementation of a licence condition or, if not, whether it is necessary to refuse 
the application. 

 
  
7. APPEAL PROVISIONS  

 
7.1. If the application is refused the applicant may appeal within 21 days of written 

notification from the authority to the Magistrates’ Court. If the application is 
granted any person making a relevant representation may appeal within 21 days 
of written notification from the authority to the Magistrates’ Court. 

7.2. On appeal the court may either dismiss the appeal, substitute the decision 
appealed against for any other decision which the authority could have made, or 
remit the case to the authority to dispose of in accordance with the direction of 
the court. The court may make such order for costs as it thinks fit. 

7.3. In the event that an appeal is lodged, Stage 2 of the competition is suspended. 
7.4. This report has not been sent to the Trades Union because they would have no 

involvement. 
 
 
 

 
Page 34



Printed on recycled paper 5

8. RISK MANAGEMENT 
8.1. A risk assessment related to the issue and recommendations has been 

undertaken, in compliance with the Council's decision making risk management 
guidance. 

9. EQUALITIES 
9.1. The Council’s Equality Policy has been followed in writing this report. 
9.2. The committee will take into account their equality duties in determining this 

application. 
10. CONSULTATION 

10.1. As part of the application process the applicant placed a public notice in the 
Bath Chronicle, public notices were also displayed around the boundary of the 
proposed site and a copy of the application was sent to all the Responsible 
Authorities. 

11. ISSUES TO CONSIDER IN REACHING THE DECISION 
11.1. Section 153 of the Gambling Act 2005; Licensing Objectives; Human Rights, 

Equalities. 
12. ADVICE SOUGHT 

12.1. The Council's Monitoring Officer (Council Solicitor) has had the opportunity to 
input to this report and have cleared it for publication. 

Contact person  Andrew Jones, Environmental Monitoring and Licensing 
Manager. 
Tel: 01225 477557 

Background papers The Gambling Act 2005 
The Gambling Act 2005 (Mandatory and Default Conditions) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 2007 
The Gambling (Geographical Distribution of Casino Premises 
Licences) Order 2008 
The Categories of Casino Regulations 2008 
The Gambling (Inviting Competing Applications for Large and 
Small Casino Premises Licences) Regulations 2008 
Code of Practice - Determinations under Paragraphs 4 and 5 of 
Schedule 9 to the Gambling Act 2005 relating to Large and Small 
Casinos dated 26 February 2008  
Guidance to Licensing Authorities issued by the Gambling 
Commission 3rd Edition dated May 2009. 
BANES Statement of Principles dated February 2010 

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an alternative format 

Page 35



Printed on recycled paper 6

 

Page 36



Appendix A 

 

Page 37



Appendix A 

 

Page 38



Appendix A 

 

Page 39



Appendix A 

 

Page 40



Appendix A 

 

Page 41



Appendix A 

 

Page 42



Appendix A 

 

Page 43



Appendix A 

 

Page 44



Appendix A 

 

Page 45



Appendix A 

 

Page 46



Appendix A 

 

Page 47



Appendix A 

 

Page 48



Appendix A 

 

Page 49



Appendix A 

 

Page 50



Appendix A 

 

Page 51



Appendix A 

 

Page 52



Appendix A 

 

Page 53



Appendix A 

Page 54



Appendix A 

 

Page 55



Page 56



Appendix B 

 

Page 57



Appendix B 

 

Page 58



Appendix B 

 

Page 59



Appendix B 

 

Page 60



Appendix B 

 

Page 61



Appendix B 

 

Page 62



Appendix B 

 

Page 63



Appendix B 

 

Page 64



Appendix C 

 

Page 65



Page 66



 
Bath & North East Somerset Council 

 

MEETING
: 

 
Licensing (Gambling and Licensing ) Sub Committee 
 

MEETING 
DATE: Wednesday 8th June 2011 

AGENDA 
ITEM 
NUMBER 

 

TITLE: 

Application for the Issue of a Provisional Statement for a proposed 
small casino at the site of the existing car park bounded by 
Manvers Street to the West, walkway adjacent to the Police Station 
to the South and South Parade to the North, Bath.  
Grosvenor Casinos Limited, Statesman House, Stafferton Way, 
Maidenhead, Surrey SL6 1AY 

WARD: ALL 
 

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

List of attachments to this report: 
Appendix A; Copy of the application for a Provisional Statement 
Appendix B; Copy of Location Map and Plans 
Appendix C; Copy of a relevant representation 

 
 
1. THE ISSUE 

 
1.1 An application has been received from Grosvenor Casinos Limited, 

Statesman House, Stafferton Way, Maidenhead, Surrey SL6 1AY, 
under the Gambling Act 2003 (“the Act”).  The application is for the 
issue of a Provisional Statement in respect of a proposed small casino 
at the site of the existing car park bounded by Manvers Street to the 
West, walkway adjacent to the Police Station to the South and South 
Parade to the North, Bath. 

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 67



2. RECOMMENDATION 
2.1. The Sub-Committee is asked to determine the application having 

considered the application, the supporting information provided by the 
applicant and the representation made against the application. 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
3.1. An application fee of £8,000 has been received, which covers the cost 

of the application process. 
4. THE REPORT 

4.1. An application has been received for the issue of a Provisional 
Statement to provide gambling facilities by way of a small casino.  A 
copy of the application form can be found at Appendix A.   

4.2. The hours applied for are Monday to Sunday 00.00 to 24.00. 
 

4.3. A map showing the location of the application and plans showing the 
proposed use of the premises can be found at Appendix B. 

 
4.4. Relevant representations have been received from Interested Parties.  A 

copy of the representations can be found at Appendix C.   The 
representations relate to the objective of protecting the vulnerable from 
harm. 

 
4.5. In accordance with the requirements of the Act the applicant served 

copies of the application upon the Gambling Commission, police, the 
fire authority, environmental health, development control, trading 
standards, and the child protection agency.   

4.6. The applicant is required to place a notice at the premises for a period 
of 28 days, starting on the closing date for the receipt of applications 
(see paragraph 5.5. below), and place an advert in a local newspaper 
within 10 days of the closing date. 

 

 
5. BACKGROUND 
 

5.1. The licensing authority (“the authority”) was awarded permission to grant 
one small casino premises licence (“the licence”) in its area on 20 May 
2008 (under The Gambling (Geographical Distribution of Casino 
Premises Licences) Order 2008).  These Regulations state that no more 
than one such licence issued by a licensing authority may have effect at 
any time. 

 

Page 68



5.2. Under the Act a licence is required where an applicant intends to provide 
gambling facilities.  The application seeks to provide gambling facilities 
in the form of a small casino.   

 
5.3. A small casino is classified in The Categories of Casino Regulations 

2008,as having a combined floor area of those parts of the casino, which 
are used for providing facilities for gambling, that are equal to or exceed 
500 square metres, but is less than 1,500 square metres. 

 
5.4. Under section 204 of the Act an applicant may apply for a Provisional 

Statement in respect of premises that he expects to be constructed or 
altered or expects to acquire a right to occupy.  Once a Provisional 
Statement has been issued, the  applicant can then apply for a licence 
at a later date.   

 
5.5. The issue of one Provisional Statement for a small casino is governed 

by a competition procedure which is governed by Paragraphs 4 and 5 to 
Schedule 9 of the Act.   An invitation to apply for the licence was 
advertised in October 2010 with a closing date of 28 February 2011.  

 
5.6. Stage 1 of the competition procedure is regulatory.  At Stage 1 an 

authority must not;  
 

5.6.1. take into account any matters which they would not ordinarily take 
into account in determining an application for a licence 

 
5.6.2. have regard to whether any of the competing applications is more 

deserving of the other at Stage 1. 
 

5.6.3. have regard to the expected demand for the facilities which it is 
proposed to provide. 

 
5.6.4. take into account whether or not the proposal is likely to be 

permitted in accordance with the law relating to planning or building. 
 
 

5.7. At Stage 1 the Licensing Authority may either make a provisional 
decision to grant a Provisional Statement or reject the application.  If 
granted, an authority shall attach mandatory conditions to the 
Provisional Statement and may attach default conditions.  These 
conditions are governed by The Gambling Act 2005 (Mandatory and 
Default Conditions) (England and Wales) Regulations 2007 (“the 2007 
Regulations”). 

 
 
 
 

Page 69



5.8. The applicant has requested that the default condition, found in Part 6 of 
the 2007 Regulations, be excluded.  This states that no facilities for 
gambling shall be provided on the premises between the hours of 6.00 
am and noon on any day.  

 
5.9. In addition the authority can impose further conditions to promote the 

licensing objectives. 
 
5.10. Where licensing authorities determine that they would, if they were able, 

to grant more than one application for a Provisional Statement, the 
applicants who made those applications must be invited to participate in 
Stage 2. 

 
5.11. The award of the Provisional Statement for a small casino at Stage 2 of 

the competition is determined by the full Licensing Committee. (“the 
Committee”).  At Stage 2, the Committee must award the premises 
licence to the application which would, in the licensing authority’s 
opinion, be likely, if granted, to result in the greatest benefit to its area.  

 
 

6. PRINCIPLES TO BE APPLIED 
 

6.1. Under the provisions of the Act an authority, in making decisions at 
stage 1, shall aim to permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as 
the authority thinks it is: 

 
6.1.1. in accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the 

Gambling Commission (“the Commission”), and 
 
6.1.2. in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the 

Commission and, 
 
6.1.3. reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives (subject to 6.1.1 

and 6.1.2  above) and, 
 
6.1.4. in accordance with the authority’s Statement of Principles (“the 

Statement”) under the Act (subject to all of the above). 
 

6.2. With regard to paragraph 6.1.3 above, the licensing objectives are: 
 
6.2.1. Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, 

being associated with crime or disorder or being used to support 
crime. 

 
6.2.2. Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way 
 

Page 70



6.2.3. Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being 
harmed or exploited by gambling (it should be noted that the 
requirement in relation to children is explicitly to protect them from 
being harmed or exploited by gambling.) 

 
6.3. The authority shall also have regard to the Act, the Statutory Guidance 

issued under Section 25 of the Act and its Statement in making its 
determination. 

 
6.4. The committee should give specific consideration to the relevant 

representation received and whether or not it is satisfied that the 
premises can operate without risk to the licensing objectives listed in 
paragraph 6.2.   If it is not satisfied then the committee should consider 
whether the risk can be alleviated  through the implementation of a 
licence condition or, if not, whether it is necessary to refuse the 
application. 

 
 

7. APPEAL PROVISIONS  
 

7.1. If the application is refused the applicant may appeal within 21 days of 
written notification from the authority to the Magistrates’ Court. If the 
application is granted any person making a relevant representation 
may appeal within 21 days of written notification from the authority to 
the Magistrates’ Court. 

7.2. On appeal the court may either dismiss the appeal, substitute the 
decision appealed against for any other decision which the authority 
could have made, or remit the case to the authority to dispose of in 
accordance with the direction of the court. The court may make such 
order for costs as it thinks fit. 

7.3. In the event that an appeal is lodged, Stage 2 of the competition is 
suspended. 

7.4. This report has not been sent to the Trades Union because they would 
have no involvement. 

 
8. RISK MANAGEMENT 

8.1. A risk assessment related to the issue and recommendations has been 
undertaken, in compliance with the Council's decision making risk 
management guidance. 

9. EQUALITIES 
9.1. The Council’s Equality Policy has been followed in writing this report. 

Page 71



9.2. The committee will take into account their equality duties in 
determining this application. 

10. CONSULTATION 
10.1. As part of the application process the applicant placed a public notice 

in the Bath Chronicle, public notices were also displayed around the 
boundary of the proposed site and a copy of the application was sent 
to all the Responsible Authorities. 

11. ISSUES TO CONSIDER IN REACHING THE DECISION 
11.1. Section 153 of the Gambling Act 2005, Licensing Objectives, Human 

Rights, Equalities. 
12. ADVICE SOUGHT 

12.1. The Council's Monitoring Officer (Council Solicitor) has had the 
opportunity to input to this report and have cleared it for publication. 

 

Contact person  Andrew Jones, Environmental Monitoring and Licensing 
Manager. 
Tel: 01225 477557 

Background papers The Gambling Act 2005 
The Gambling Act 2005 (Mandatory and Default Conditions) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 2007 
The Gambling (Geographical Distribution of Casino Premises 
Licences) Order 2008 
The Categories of Casino Regulations 2008 
The Gambling (Inviting Competing Applications for Large and 
Small Casino Premises Licences) Regulations 2008 
Code of Practice - Determinations under Paragraphs 4 and 5 of 
Schedule 9 to the Gambling Act 2005 relating to Large and Small 
Casinos dated 26 February 2008  
Guidance to Licensing Authorities issued by the Gambling 
Commission 3rd Edition dated May 2009. 
BANES Statement of Principles dated February 2010 

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an alternative format 
 

Page 72



Appendix A 

 

Page 73



Appendix A 

 

Page 74



Appendix A 

 

Page 75



Appendix A 

 

Page 76



Appendix A 

 

Page 77



Appendix A 

 

Page 78



Appendix A 

 

Page 79



Appendix A 

 

Page 80



Appendix A 

 

Page 81



Appendix A 

 

Page 82



Appendix A 

 

Page 83



Appendix A 

 

Page 84



Appendix A 

 

Page 85



Appendix A 

 

Page 86



Appendix A 

 

Page 87



Appendix A 

 

Page 88



Appendix A 

 

Page 89



Appendix A 

 

Page 90



Appendix A 

 

Page 91



Appendix A 

 

Page 92



Appendix A 

 

Page 93



Appendix A 

 

Page 94



Appendix A 

 

Page 95



Page 96



Appendix B 

 

Page 97



Appendix B 

 

Page 98



Appendix B 

 

Page 99



Appendix B 

 

Page 100



Appendix C 

 

Page 101



Appendix C 

 

Page 102



Appendix C 

 

Page 103



Appendix C 

 

Page 104



Appendix C 

 

Page 105



Appendix C 

 

Page 106



Appendix C 

 

Page 107



Appendix C 

 

Page 108


	Agenda
	6 GAMBLING ACT PROCEDURE
	Gambling Act procedure
	Gambling Act procedure flowchart

	7 Application by Apollo Resorts and Leisure Limited for the Issue of a Provisional Statement for a proposed small casino at Cattle Market Site, Walcot Street, Bath BA1 5BD
	Apollo Appendix A
	Apollo Appendix B
	Apollo Appendix C

	8 Application by Gala Casinos Ltd for the Issue of a Provisional Statement for a proposed small casino at the Cattle Market Site, Walcot Street, Bath BA1 5BD
	Gala Appendix A
	Gala Appendix B
	Gala Appendix C

	9 Application by Grosvenor Casinos Limited for the Issue of a Provisional Statement for a proposed small casino at the site of the existing car park bounded by Manvers Street to the West, walkway adjacent to the Police Station to the South and South Parade to the North, Bath
	Grosvenor Appendix A
	Grosvenor Appendix B
	Grosvenor Appendix C


